Reading Municipal Lig_ht Department

RELIABLE POWER FOR GENERATIONS

230 Ash Street
P.O. Box 150
Reading, MA 01867-0250

Tel: (781) 944-1340
Fax: (781) 942-2409
Web: www.rmld.com

AGENDA
REGULAR SESSION

READING MUNICIPAL LIGHT DEPARTMENT
CITIZENS' ADVISORY BOARD (CAB) MEETING

THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2014
6:30 PM
at
230 Ash Street
Reading, MA 01867
Winfred Spurr/Audio Visual Room

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - J. Norton, Chairman

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - J. Norton, Chairman
Attachment(s): RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes from December 4, 2013

Suggested Motion: Move that the Citizens’ Advisory Board Approve the Minutes from the
December 4, 2013, meeting as written.

3. CONSIDERATION OF RATE ADJUSTMENT - C. O’Brien, General Manager
e Public Input
¢ Final Vote

Attachment(s): MDPU Tariff Filings Numbers 228 through 235
Memo from General Manager
Memo from Mr. Mayhew Seavey, PLM Electric Power Engineering
Rate Comparison — Proposed RMLD Rates vs. Other Local Utilities
Legal Opinion from Rubin and Rudman on PILOT

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board
Regular Session Agenda: January 23, 2014 Page 1 of 2



Suggested Motion: Move that the RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board recommend to the RMLD
Board of Commissioners the adoption of the rates MDPU numbers 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233,
234,235 dated to be filed on January 30, 2014, on the recommendation of the General Manager.

Rate Tariff #
Residential Schedule A MDPU #228
Residential Schedule RW MDPU #229
Residential Time-of-Use Schedule A2 Rate MDPU #230
Commercial Schedule C MDPU #231
Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I MDPU #232
School Schedule SCH MDPU #233
Street Lighting Rate Schedule D MDPU #234
Cooperative Resale Schedule G MDPU #235

4. REVIEW OF CAB POLICY #1 —J. Norton, Chairman
Attachment(s): Draft Revised CAB Policy # 1

5. NEXT MEETING -J. Norton, Chairman

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION -J. Norton, Chairman

Suggested Motion: Move that the Citizens’ Advisory Board go into Executive Session based on
Chapter 164, Section 47D exemption from public records and open meeting requirements in certain
instances, to approve Executive Session Minutes of December 4, 2013, to discuss competitively

sensitive issues, and return to regular session for the sole purpose of adjournment. Note Roll call
vote required.

7. ADJOURNMENT-J. Norton, Chairman

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and does not necessarily include all matters which may be
taken up at this meeting.

Upcoming RMLD Board of Commissioners Meeting:
Wednesday, January 29, 2014, CAB Representative: Mr. George Hooper

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board
Regular Session Agenda: January 23, 2014 Page 2 of 2






READING MUNICIPAL LIGHT DEPARTMENT
CITIZENS’ ADVISORY BOARD (CAB) MEETING

MINUTES
Regular Session

Time:  6:30 p.m.
Date:  Wednesday, December 4, 2013
Place: RMLD, 230 Ash Street, Reading, MA, Winfred Spurr/Audio Visual Room

CAB Members Present:

Mr. John Norton, Chairman (North Reading), Mr. Tony Capobianco (Reading), Mr. George Hooper,
Vice Chairman (Wilmington), Mr. Thomas Ollila, Secretary (Wilmington)

CAB Members Absent:
Mr. David Nelson (Lynnfield)

RMLD Commissioner(s) Present:
Mr. Philip Pacino

RMLD Staff Present:
Ms. Coleen O’Brien, Mr. Robert Fournier, Ms. Jane Parenteau, Ms. Kathleen Rybak

1. Call Meeting to Order — J. Norton, Chairman

Chairman Norton called the meeting of the Citizens’ Advisory Board to order at 6:35 p.m. and noted
that the meeting was being audio taped.

Chair Norton asked that we move to Item 3 on the Agenda.

3. Approval of Minutes—J. Norton, Chaitman
Materials: September 18, 2013, CAB Minutes
Chairman Norton asked for a motion to approve the minutes.

Mr. Ollila made a motion to accept the Minutes from the September 18, 2013, meeting as written,

seconded by Mr. Capobianco. Hearing no further discussion, Motion cartied 4:0:1 (4 in favor, 0
opposed, 1 absent).

4. FY13 Annual Financial Report - R. Fournier

Materials: Town of Reading, Massachusetts — Reading Municipal 1ight Department — Annnal Financial Statements for the Year
Ended June 30, 2013.

Mr. Fournier reported that Melanson Heath presented their annual report at the September Board
meeting. As noted under Opinions on page 2 of the report, RMLD had a clean opinion. Overall, the
cash position is strong. We have no debt in the balance sheets - it’s been like that for several years now.
From a financial standpoint they were pleased with the results.

Mr. Fournier noted two items that were brought up by the auditors: Interest Income — they thought,
based on what we had for available funds, that our interest income was a little low. We have been
trying to adopt what the Town does (they have been investing in 13 week CDs which get about % of
1%) and have started moving some of our money into CDs. Some of the longer term investments are
earning 3-4%. We are probably going to move some money into that very shortly. We are hoping to

move our interest income about $25,000 to about $125,000-150,000 annually once we move these
monies.

The other point raised was the OPEB trust. We were carrying the liability and a Cash account on the
RMLD’s books. The Town’s auditors (another branch of Melanson Heath), suggested that we set up a

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 10of 7



trust to go along with the Town - similar to how the pension retirement system is set up. Mr. Fournier
reported that he has been talking with the Town Treasurer and Accountant, and he will be working with
them to set up the trust with the Town (not have the RMLD set up a separate trust). Since the OPEB
liability goes out 25-30 years and the annual amount is nowhere near what the pension contribution is,
we will make the recommendation to the Board that we - similar to how the pension trust is set up by
the Town - have the OPEB be exactly the same, and therefore we do not have to have the RMLD set
up an OPEB trust fund just as a funding mechanism for the OPEB liability. We spoke with the
auditors and they thought it was a great idea, so we’ll finalize all of that and make a recommendation to
the Board early next year. Those were the only two things that came up in the discussion of the
financial statements for the annual audit. We’ve already acted on most of it and will finalize both
probably by February of next year.

5. FY14 Financial Report — October YI'D — R. Fournier
Materials: October 31, 2013, Report
Mr. Fournier presented the Financial Report for the first four months of FY14. Mr. Fournier noted that
year-to-date Fuel Revenues exceeded Fuel Expenses by $1m. Looking at the $1.7m YTD Net Income,
$1m of that is comprised of the Fuel Revenues being higher than Fuel Expenses, which is not a good
situation. Basically, more than half of our income is made up of the variance between the Fuel Revenue
and Fuel Expense, so it’s something that needs to be watched. Mr. Fournier went on to review the
remainder of the October report. With regard to the (General Information) Gaw revenues, the goal is
to hit about $2.5 which is what the Gaw remediation expenses were. Based on kilowatt hour sales
projections, probably in January or February we’ll stop making that charge on our bills.

Mr. Capobianco asked for clarification on Fuel Revenues and Fuel Expenses. Mt. Fournier replied,
Fuel Revenue is the fuel charge you see on your bill (as a separate line item) - usually about §0.04-0.05
per kilowatt hour used - that’s what RMLD charges you for fuel. When Energy Services pulls together
their purchase power costs every month, there are different components on that bill — part of that bill is
the Fuel Expense — what type of fuel is being used to generate the energy. The two are compared -
there is what customers are billed and there is what it cost RMLD. Ms. Parenteau monitors the fuel
charge closely and makes the appropriate adjustments. Eventually, those two numbers will come

together and the Fuel Revenue/Expense is a pass through. We don’t make money on that — we try to
get that as close as we can.

Mr. Hooper asked if this is considered, especially with the under budget, a sign of the times with the
economy or do you think its conservative budget numbers. Mr. Fournier asked for clarification — for
the revenue, expense or both? Mr. Hooper replied, for both. Mr. Fournier replied, growth (sales-wise)
— we’ve been pretty flat. We thought we would have a little bump, there was a nice hot summer — but
things have kind of flattened out. Expense-wise, we really haven’t had anything out of the ordinary.

Mr. Hooper asked about collections. Mr. Fournier replied less than 4% of our receivables are over 61
days or older (as of November), which means only two invoices outstanding. Collections have been

good. Lien letters just went out - this was the least amount of lien letters we’ve sent out for the four

towns — less than 20 — there’s been easily over a hundred in the past.

Mr. Capobianco asked if efficiency measures are counter-productive to our revenue. Mr. Fournier
replied, yes. Basically, you are telling people not to use electricity, but we still have to cover our costs, so
if they don’t use enough electricity and our costs are still high or steady, we need to raise our rates to
recover our costs. So people do realize some savings, but if everyone did massive savings and cut back
— our fixed costs are still up here — revenues are down here. How do we cover those costs? The only
way to do it is to raise rates, which kind of defeats the whole purpose. You are doing your part as far as
the conservation goes, but when it comes to the pocket — what have I gained — it’s a catch 22.

Tom Ollila stated, I think the goal is to have those cancel each other out so people’s bills stay the same.
But, it’s a difficult balance.

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 2 of 7



Chair Norton noted that we will move back to Item 2.

2. Cost of Service Study — Coleen O’Btien
Ms. O’Brien noted, those that were able to attend the training session at 5:30, learned the Cost of Service
(COS) process from Mr. Mayhew Seavey of Power Line Modeling out of Hopkinton, who is a well-
known rate designer and economist in the utility industry. Ms. O’Brien reviewed some of the factors
that lead to the request for a COS Study: a review of the projected revenues for the six year plan; the
Standard and Poor’s review for our credit rating (which went well); review of the load growth projected
forward - it will probably make some sort of recovery - but over the last two years overall it’s been
extremely sluggish. This created a need to call for a COS Study sooner than was planned. The COS
Study goes into a Cost Allocation, which leads into rate design analysis. The COS divides the cost of
production into appropriate rate classes. This information would be presented to the CAB and then to
the Board of Commissioners for implementation. The COS and Cost Allocation studies are
comprehensive and take several months for all of the data to be loaded in and to be analyzed. This COS
Study and Cost Allocation and Rate design (projected to be done within the next 3-4 months) will result
in rates which will not only target each of the classes, but also provide a potential rate for LED street
lights. An LED Pilot provides a mechanism for discussing an overall conversion. As a ballpark, the
lights are probably between $300-350 a piece (to fit on existing arms) for a total of anywhere between
$800,000 to $2m for the lighting conversion (a breakdown will be based on the number of lights that we
have). The town’s DPW budgets will realize the energy savings, but RMLD would need to determine
who will be paying for the conversion itself and how that fits into the overall capital budget and expenses.

Ms. O’Brien reported that she did not find a six year financial plan submitted with the FY14 Budget.
When reviewing the last six year plan available it was noticed that the built-in load growths, overall, had
not come in as projected and that there was an erosion of the revenues. The rate of return came in for
FY13 at around 2%, which was well below the stronger historical figures of 5-6.6%. Speaking with Mr.
Seavey and seeing the trends of the growth in RMLD, and then talking with Mr. Fournier and with some
of the projections coming up with OPEB and other things (the pension fund, the transmission and
capacity increases) we want to, not only look at the current, but these five to six year projections.
Immediately, though, this 2% is getting worse as we approach the end of this fiscal year. So, realistically,
in order to even be meeting around the 2%, there probably should have been a rate increase looked at
during FY13.  Ms. O’Brien noted that she didn’t come on board until mid-July and wasn’t able to
identify the deficiency as the FY14 budget was already approved. She apologized for the urgency of
ensuring that the RMLD take the necessary corrective action to end the FY14 year with a positive net
income. Ms. O’Brien acknowledged that there is a normal protocol to go through, but is asking the
Board to consider looking at this rate increase that is basically being done given the current projections
and that a more detailed analysis would come out of the full blown COS Study. But, in order to ensure
that we meet those revenue streams that are required to pay our commitments — in lieu of tax payments
and the town payments — RMLD needed around a 4.5% increase last July. Now by the time we get
through some of the process it will probably be January, and it will be up to about 9% on the base rate
factors, which probably equates (for a typical 500kwh family, residential) to about $3.00 additional per
month. Ms. O’Brien acknowledged $3.00 is a lot of money for some people. Ms. O’Brien asked what
she could provide to help expedite the increase to at least make sure that we make those revenues. Ms.
O’Brien assured the CAB that as we go forward (before any changes were proposed as a result of the
COS for next July,) that we’ll follow the normal protocol to give a sufficient amount of time to review
the data in the COS and Cost Allocation.

Mr. Hooper said, that gives us enough heads up so that we can go back to our communities and speak to
our managers and let them know what’s coming so they are not blind-sided by this. That’s what we are
here for as far as the Advisory Board, and that is exactly what I am going to do — go back and speak with
the Manager and the Board of Selectmen and let them know — I will get their input. Of course you are
going to go through your Board of Commissioners?

Ms. O’Brien confirmed that she would be speaking to that at the next meeting. Obviously, with every
rate increase we want to be looking at everything —we are keeping an eye on our expenses. There are a

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 3 of 7



lot of things that we are juggling, but I think (as Mr. Seavey spoke) the predominant reason why this
occurred was the sluggish sales and the load growth over the last two years - it starts to compound very
quickly. We want to at least be as proactive as the time will allow now that we have sufficient data. We
want to ensure that the RMLD remains stable financially and meets all of their commitments. M.
Hooper, cautioned that something that we need to be careful of also is, we are doing a 4.5% increase and
talking about another for a total of nine. Is that what we are going to need? I would not want to have to
go back and take another bite of this apple.

Ms. O’Brien responded, the 4.5% is the figure if this was on a six year plan and implemented last July.

In order to collect between now and the end of June 2014 the figure is 9% of base charges, as discussed
-what Mr. Seavey was confirming and I think Jane confirmed this earlier - would get us the revenue
stream that we need to make all of our payments and to have the budget be where it was projected and as
voted for approval. I don’t think there would be another increase in order to make that revenue. The
COS and Cost Allocation, though, is going from July 1, 2014, out five or six years so that will be another
request to look at what the rate structure will be - if the rate structure changes, if there’s new rate designs
like the LED rate, and what that might look at. I can’t tell right now whether there will be an adjustment
down or any type of adjustment up at this time. We can wait and see what that data says for the next five
or six years. But, I will tell you that having that done, and having that done in a six year fashion, if we go
towards unbundling, we have that ability to really monitor where we are on our rate of return every single
month. It gives us that ability to monitor it monthly and to always be on top of things. You can make a
lot of dynamic decisions when you know what’s happening monthly, and when the imbedded costs are
broken out, you know exactly what you’re being charged and where the costs are coming from.

Mr. Ollila added, we can also more proactively get that message out to the customer so they understand
and they can hopefully adjust their planning and efficiency programs, or whatever, to get the most bang
for their buck - to minimize their expenses. Ms. O’Brien agreed.

Mr. Hooper asked (relative to the LED street lights), because we’ve just changed a lot of our
incandescents over to the 50 watt high pressure sodium, could you give us a cost of what you expect it to
be from the 50 watt high pressure sodium to an LED fixture. Ms. O’Brien agreed to provide that
information. It will be the comparison between a residential 50 watt high pressure sodium to an LED.
The savings is in energy — that’s why there’s a new rate. But, there is a capital cost to do the conversion.
A determination hasn’t been made exactly who’s going to bare the capital costs — I haven’t finished that
analysis to see what recommendation I would make of where that would come from. The utility could
pay for the conversion and then the energy is saved through the tax rate — so it’s not necessarily a rate of
return for the RMLD on the capital investment. I just want to make sure that I present that with staff
recommendations of how that fits into the rate as well. I understand that the towns want to save money
on their energy, but at the same time it’s hard to balance expenses while trying to do major capital
improvements - not only on the reliability of the system and making the system more flexible for demand
response, and costs associated with peak shaving in the future, and then also doing LED conversions.
So, we are going to start off slow with just an LED pilot and rate structure so we have those mechanisms
to make informed decisions. We also have that opportunity to talk to some of the other cities and
towns that have made full conversions — what are their lessons learned? What would they do differently?
Would they have done it at all? Did maintenance go up? Can you see through them? Who paid for the
physical conversion? How much energy are they saving? Are they too bright? We will get all of that data
that will come out of the pilot. So, slow and steady will win that race down the pike.

Chair Norton asked Ms. O’Brien to provide a write-up for each one of the members so that when
making a presentation to the respective boards - we have a sheet that we are actually reading off in
regards to this proposed rate increase. Ms. O’Brien agreed to provide that information.

Mr. Capobianco asked, are we looking for an immediate 9% increase? Ms. O’Brien replied, on the base

charges only, which is about $3.00 per month. Mr. Capobianco asked, on what bill — the December or
January bill? Ms. O’Brien replied, the January bill. Mr. Capobianco asked, that’s because our expenses

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 4 of 7



are exceeding our revenues? Ms. O’Brien replied, essentially. Mr. Capobianco asked about the LEDs
— you had experience with that in your previous role in Danvers? Ms. O’Brien replied, right.

Mr. Capobianco stated, one thing I was asked during my Board of Selectmen meeting was why couldn’t
we leverage that experience - is there a difference — things need to be set up differently here? Ms.
O’Brien replied, because we don’t have an Energy Efficiency Engineer yet (that would be the key
person), I worked with Engineering to see if we couldn’t free up one of the project managers to help out
for the interim with a pilot study - I have heard from both groups that you want me to move with this.
So, Brian Smith has been assigned. I gave him the LED pilot to use as a template using the same exact
lights (because they have already been vetted) and he has been asked to look at any new lights that may
have been developed by some of the companies just in the last several months (the pilot that was done
previously is still fairly new) and to call some of these towns or cities, like Cambridge, to get their lessons
learned. Then we’ll proceed with trying to get different vendors to come in — some of the vendors might
donate lights — some of them charge a rental fee and then you keep them up for six months — there are
different ways of working with the vendors for those lights that we’ve targeted — those that seem to work

well for not only illumination, but also for the linemen, with respect to operability, functionality and the
other attributes that we look at.

Mr. Hooper stated, that technology seems to be advancing. Ms. O’Brien agreed, and the price is coming
down too so that’s fantastic.  Mr. Capobianco asked, is that bad for the RMLD - LED street lights
generating less revenue? Ms. O’Brien, replied using less electricity and costing us $2m or so if that’s
what we’re paying - then yes, it would. Ms. O’Brien noted municipal street lighting is annual revenues of
$340,000 and annual expenses of $497,000. Mz. Ollila commented, to use that example — this is already a
negative 15% because our expenses are more. Would going to LEDs help us because our expenses
would go down? Ms. O’Brien replied, I’d probably have to do a breakout of the expenses, but I would
say that after your capital expenditure, whatever you are putting in for your depreciation expense to pay
for whatever portion RMLD is going to contribute - your expenses should go down somewhat especially
if they’re good for as long as the manufacturers say they are. Some of the problems are not necessarily
just the LED assembly lights — they last a good amount of time, but you also have driver mechanisms in
there that give off an awful lot of heat. So how they are designed has a lot to do with how well they
maintain and how long they last. There is a trade-off and the trade-off really lands on the RMLD side

because it would be doing the maintenance and operation of the lamp and then the energy savings is
realized by the towns.

6. RMLD Policy on Payment in Lieu of Taxes — R. Fournier
Materials: October 21, 2013, Memo from Rubin and Rudman, LLP
Chairman Norton noted that Mr. Nelson had reported that he was satisfied with what was written by
Rubin and Rudman relative to this agenda item. There were no other questions.

7. Asset Inspection Program — C. O’Brien
Ms. O’Brien gave an overview of an Asset Inspection Program. For the most part, asset management is
preventative and predictive maintenance — it improves reliability, allows better planning and scheduling of
projects and crews, staffing, and reduces costs. The Reliability Study which is being called for as an
integral part of the Organizational Study will be taking a look at asset inspection. When you look at the
reliability of the entire system, it will help to identify the inspection programs that we do not have in
place. That doesn’t mean that I cannot create or have an inspection program of transformers or other
assets that I can send out, but I’'m waiting for that independent review going forward. Asset inspections
allow a tracking and trending of each piece of equipment so that you can address a problem before it
either fails or you have an outage. There is a whole array of inspection programs that will help to save
money and to work getting RMLD from more of a reactive, to a proactive and preventative nature type
of utility. In the longer run, it will improve the reliability and save money.

Ms. O’Brien addressed the recent leaks, and fuse and transformer failures. Out of the 700 or 800
transformers (because there really wasn’t an inspection program before) there have only been 200 of
them done so far. We have another 500 to go and a lot of them are much larger, so we are working to
see how quickly we can get that done - hopefully before next summer.

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 5 of 7



10.

1.

Mr. Capobianco asked if any of the 200 resulted in needing to replace any others. Ms. O’Brien replied,
there were two others that were weeping that were handled with minimal cleanup and then I believe there
was another 30 that needed replacement. The whole point of that is to have the GIS to the point where
it’s collecting the data of what the usage is and you have a little macro program that adds up all of the
customers that are connected to the transformer, it spits out a pretty easy formula that says here’s your
transformer — it can’t be loaded more than this — you add up what your usage is and you know you want
to keep your loading on your transformer in the middle — under-load is not efficient and over-load is not
efficient - they both cost you money, and overloaded means either an oil leak or an outage. Uninspected
transformers over long periods of time can rust out as we saw up in Wilmington.

Use of LED Street Lights- T. Capobianco
Included with Cost of Service Study discussion.

Review of CAB Policy #1 - J. Norton, Chairman

Materials: CAB Policy No. 1 Revision No. 1 (included in Packet) and Mr. Nelson’s Edits (distributed).

Chairman Norton stated that Mr. Nelson had provided some additional comments/edits for CAB Policy
No. 1. Chairman Norton asked that discussion of Policy 1 be tabled for a future meeting when Mr.
Nelson is present to discuss his suggested edits. Mr. Nelson’s draft was distributed to the CAB members.

2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Coverage — J. Notton, Chairman

Chair Norton asked Mr. Pacino if he knew what the anticipated schedule would be for the BOC meetings
(the fourth or last Wednesday of the month where there were five Wednesday’s in the month). Mr.
Pacino responded that he did not know — that needs to be checked out with the Chairman. Ms.
Parenteau stated that we typically indicated to the Board that the last Wednesday of the month would be
preferable from the department standpoint. The January meeting is scheduled for the 29, Chairman

Norton asked Mr. Pacino to ask the BOC Chairman what his intention is for scheduled meeting dates for
2014.

The schedule for BOC meeting coverage for 2014 was set. A schedule will be forwarded to each CAB
member.

Election of Officers — J. Norton, Chairman
Chairman Norton tabled this discussion until all members could be present.

Commissioner Pacino asked to address the CAB. Mr. Pacino thanked the CAB for inviting him — and
noted it’s always been one of his pleasures to come here (as one of the architects of the 20-Year
Agreement) and see this body work — it gives me a lot of pride.

Mr. Pacino noted that the Town of Reading is presently having a Charter Review Commission - nothing
has been finalized yet, but there are some changes in the Charter that we are talking about. Mt. Pacino
noted that proposed changes could be found on the Town of Reading website, under By-Laws. If there
is any input or concerns please communicate them back. Mr. Pacino is a member of that Committee
representing Precinct 5 in Reading. The idea is to coordinate what is really going on and update some of
the language. Itis all tentative and far from final at this time.

Next Meeting — J. Norton, Chairman

The group discussed the timing for the next meeting in order to consider the request for a rate increase.
Mr. Pacino noted that the BOC will meet on the 12th of December with a presentation to be made by the
Department to the Board. Then the Board will look to the CAB - so you start the clock running on the
30 days. Mr. Pacino stressed the importance of moving on this quickly. Mr. Pacino also asked, Mr.
Chairman, if you are going to appear in front of your different towns, we ask you to let the Department
know those dates if you need some of the commission members in support.

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: Decembert 4, 2013 Page 6 of 7



Ms. O’Brien stated, if you know what the proposal is and you have the sheets (because it is just a
preliminary finding), couldn’t the 30 days start from today. Chairman Norton answered, no. The 30 days
starts when the Board of Light Commissioners takes it up, as set by the 20-Year Agreement. Ms.
Parenteau, commented, obviously you’ll pick a date that works for you, but, if the BOC meets next
Thursday, and if this was to go another month and you weren’t able to meet until January, it wouldn’t be
effective until February. That 9% on the base would go to 10.5%, which would go to 14% the longer
you postpone. A recommendation might be to meet the following week. Mr. Hooper asked, because
you are looking for this to be effective on January billing? Mr. Norton, stated you are down to a natrow
timeframe — you have a very short month here too - that’s the problem.

Ms. O’Brien asked for clarification of the 30 days — once the CAB is notified by the Commissioners, they
have up to 30 days? Mr. Pacino answered, 30 days on any agreement. Ms. O’Brien clarified, up to 30
days; if the CAB wanted to make that decision — they could make it right away - so any date after the
12th. If we can’t make the numbers work and we can try and get a meeting before February... we have

to have the rate to Bob before February 1+ in order to make the F ebruary billing and then it would be
10.5%.

Mr. Capobianco, Mr. Hooper and Mr. Ollila were able to commit to the 19th. Mr. Capobianco said that
he could not make a recommendation without first meeting with the Board of Selectmen. Chair Norton,
noted that the CAB could meet and do whatever is necessary, but cannot act without consulting their
town management. I can’t guarantee that we can get to our respective Board of Selectmen. Ms.
O’Brien noted, the cost of service will adjust it - if it wasn’t needed, or it can be pulled back a little bit,

then it will be adjusted July 1. Mr. Ollila asked, when the last rate increase was. Ms. O’Brien responded,
2010.

Chair Norton asked, in the meantime, if you could get whatever information is available out to the
members so that we can at least contact our respective Chairs and see what agenda’s we can get on, but,
it’s a very narrow timeframe. Ms. O’Brien noted that she would be happy to come to the meetings and
would put together the requested information. Mr. Ollila noted that the competitive information on the
increases for National Grid and others would be a helpful part of that as well. Ms. O’Brien noted, that
another issue that Jane brought up, was because of the natural gas constraints, National Grid just went up
37% November 1— just for that issue. So, there are a lot of adjustments that are being made right now
for a number of reasons. This again, is a more sluggish economy. There hasn’t been any major change in
expenses or anything other than the sales are sluggish and it’s just compounded.

Executive Session — J. Norton, Chairman

Mr. Hooper made a motion that the CAB go into Executive Session based on Chapter 164, Section 47D
exemption from public records and open meeting requirements in certain instances to approve
Executive Session Minutes of September 18, 2013, to discuss competitively sensitive issues, and return
to regular session for the sole purpose of adjournment, seconded by Mr. Capobianco. Motfon cartied

4:0:1 (4 in favor, 0 opposed, 1absent), by a poll of members present: Mr. Hooper, aye; Chairman Norton,
aye; Mr. Capobianco, aye; Mr. Ollila, aye.

14. Motion to Adjourn —J. Norton, Chairman

Mr. Hooper made a Motion to Adjourn the Citizens’ Advisory Board meeting, seconded by Mr.
Capobianco. Hearing no further discussion, Motion carried 4:0:1 (4 in favor, 0 opposed, 1 absent).

The Citizens’ Advisory Board Meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Thomas Ollila, Secretary
Minutes approved on:

RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board Regular Session Minutes: December 4, 2013 Page 7 of 7






Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 228 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 211

Residential Schedule A Rate

Designation:
Residential A Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:
Individual residential customers for all domestic uses where service is taken through one

meter. Incidental commercial use, not exceeding 20% of the total energy used on the
same premises is permitted.

Character of service:
A.C. 60 cycles: single phase.

Customer Charge:
$3.78 per month

Energy Charge:
$.09118 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage

Budget Billing:

The customers under this rate will have available to them a budget billing program under
which the customer is required to pay a levelized amount to the Department each billing
period during the calendar year. The specifics of this program are outlined in the
Department's General Terms and Conditions.

Farm Discount:

Customers who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by the Massachusetts
Department of Food and Agriculture for being engaged in the business of agriculture or
farming, and upon certification to the RMLD by the Massachusetts Department of Food
and Agriculture, will be eligible for an additional 10% discount, prior to the RMLD
prompt payment discount, on rates and charges applicable on their monthly billing
statement.

Energy Conservation Charge:
The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 228 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 211

Residential Schedule A Rate (cont’d)

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Meter Reading and Billing:
Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges and the New York

Power Authority credit or charge, only if the entire bill is paid-in-full by the discount due
date.

General Terms and Conditions:

Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 229 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 212

Residential Schedule RW
Controlled Water Heater Rate
Designation:
Residential RW Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Individual residential customers for all domestic uses where service is taken through one
meter. Incidental commercial use, not exceeding 20% of the total energy used on the
same premises is permitted.

Character of service:
A.C. 60 cycles: single phase.

Terms of Use:

When a customer regularly uses an electric water heater of a type approved by the
Department. Service to the water heater will be controlled by a Department owned time
switch in an approved outdoor socket. Internal wiring will be the responsibility of the
customer. Water heater with two elements shall be interlocked to prevent simultaneous
operation.

Customer Charge:
$3.79 per month.

Energy Charge:

$.08799 per Kilowatt-hour for the first 100 kWh

$.03992 per Kilowatt-hour for energy in excess of 100 kWh up to 433 kWh
$.08799 per Kilowatt-hour for energy in excess of 433 kWh

Budget Billing:

The customers under this rate will have available to them a budget billing program under
which the customer is required to pay a levelized amount to the Department each billing
period during the calendar year. The specifics of this program are outlined in the
Department's General Terms and Conditions.

Farm Discount:

Customers who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by the Massachusetts
Department of Food and Agriculture for being engaged in the business of agriculture or
farming, and upon certification to the RMLD by the Massachusetts Department of Food
and Agriculture, will be eligible for an additional 10% discount, prior to the RMLD
prompt payment discount, on rates and charges applicable on their monthly billing
statement.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 229 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 212

Residential Schedule RW
Controlled Water Heater Rate (Contd.)

Energy Conservation Charge:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%

will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges and the New York

Power Authority credit or charge, only if the entire bill is paid-in-full by the discount due
date.

General Terms and Conditions:

Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 230 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 222

Residential Time-of-Use Schedule A2 Rate

Designation:
Residential Time-of-Use A2 Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Individual residential customers for all domestic uses where service is taken through one
On-Peak and Off-Peak meter. Incidental commercial use, not exceeding 20% of the total
energy used on the same premises is permitted.

Character of service:
A.C. 60 cycles: single phase.

Customer Charge:
$6.01 per month.

Energy Charge:
$.14567 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage during the On-Peak hours.

$.05015 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage during the Off-peak hours.

Definition of Periods:

The On-Peak period is defined as the hours between 12:00 Noon and 7:00 P.M. Monday
through Friday except holidays as listed under the “Granted Holidays™ paragraph listed
below. The Off-Peak period is defined as the hours between 7:00 P.M. and 12:00 Noon
Monday through Friday and all hours Saturday, Sunday and granted holidays as listed
below.

Controlled Water Heater Allowance:

When a customer regularly uses an electric water heater of a type approved by the
Department, 333 kWh will be credited to usage during the Off-Peak period and will be
billed at $.03815 kWh. All kWh used Off-Peak above 333 kWh will be charged at

the regular Off-Peak rate. If less than 333 kWh are used Off-Peak then only that amount
of kWh will be billed at $.03815 per kWh. Water heater with two elements shall be
interlocked to prevent simultaneous operation. Service to the water heater will be
controlled by a Department owned time switch in an approved outdoor socket.

Term:

A customer electing to be billed under this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of
one year. At the end of one year on this rate customer may elect to remain on this rate or
be billed under the Residential A Rate.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 230 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 222

Residential Time-of-Use Schedule A2 Rate (cont’d)

Budget Billing:

The customers under this rate will have available to them a budget billing program under
which the customer is required to pay a levelized amount to the Department each billing
period during the calendar year. The specifics of this program are outlined in the
Department's General Terms and Conditions.

Farm Discount:

Customers who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by the Massachusetts
Department of Food and Agriculture for being engaged in the business of agriculture or
farming, and upon certification to the RMLD by the Massachusetts Department of Food
and Agriculture, will be eligible for an additional ten percent discount, prior to the RMLD

prompt payment discount, on rates and charges applicable on their monthly billing
statement.

Energy Conservation Charge:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%

will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges and the New York

Power Authority credit or charge, only if the entire bill is paid-in-full by the discount due
date.

Granted Holidays

Under the Residential Time-of-Use Schedule A2 Rate the holidays granted for Off-Peak
are: New Year’s Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day and Christmas Day.

General Terms and Conditions:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 231 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 223

Commercial Schedule C Rate

Designation:
Commercial C Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Service under this rate is available to industrial or commercial customers who take all
their requirements under this rate. All electricity furnished under this rate will be metered
through one service unless it is convenient for the Department to do otherwise.

Notice:

All customers taking electric service under the Commercial Schedule C Rate and/or the
Industrial Time of Use Rate will be required to give the Department two (2) years prior
written notice of its intention to take its energy requirements from other supplier and/or

resource other than this Department while remaining on the Department's service
territory.

Character of service:
AC 60 cycles: single phase or three phase.

Customer Charge:
$6.51 per month.

Firm Demand Charge:
$6.81 per Kilowatt for all demand usage.

Energy Charge:
$.05657 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage.

Budget Billing:

The customers under the C Rate may elect the Budget Billing program under which the
customer is required to pay the levelized amount to the Department each billing period
during the calendar year. This rate is not available to C Rate Customers electing the
Contract Demand Rate, or the Non Firm Demand Rate. The specifics of this program are
outlined in the Department's General Terms and Conditions.

Energy Conservation Charge:
The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 231 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 223

Commercial Schedule C Rate (cont’d)

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Measurement of Billing Demand:

The billing demand shall be the highest of the fifteen minute kilowatt demand established
during the billing period, but not less than eighty percent of the maximum demand
established during the preceding summer or sixty percent of the maximum demand
established during the winter season.

Definitions of Seasons:
The summer season is defined as the months of June through September and the winter
season is defined as the months of October through May.

Farm Discount:

Customers who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by the Massachusetts
Department of Food and Agriculture for being engaged in the business of agriculture or
farming, and upon certification to the RMLD by the Massachusetts Department of Food
and Agriculture, will be eligible for an additional ten percent discount, prior to the
RMLD prompt payment discount, on rates and charges applicable on their monthly
billing statement.

Non-Firm Demand:

A Customer under this rate may designate any amount of load, in kilowatts, as Non-Firm.
Any amount so designated shall be capable of being removed from service during any
On-Peak hour as may be requested by the Department. A customer will be charged $4.38
per kW-month for each kilowatt of demand designated as Non-Firm demand. Failure to
remove load designated as Non-Firm load shall result in a charge of $14.46 per kW of
Non-Firm demand for that bill month.

The Department shall have the right to limit the requests for curtailment for Non-Firm
load. The Department, at its option, may request separate metering for Non-Firm loads.

The energy and fuel portion of this Non-Firm Demand rate will be billed at the normal
Commercial C rate levels.

A customer must contract to be on the Non-firm rate for a minimum of one year.
Rate Filed: January 30, 2014

Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 231 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 223

Commercial Schedule C Rate (cont’d)

Optional Contract Demand:

The customer may contract for a specific demand requirement on the Optional Contract
Demand rate. The customer shall select a demand level, which will cover its highest
annual peak. The cost of the Contract Demand rate is $8.03 per kilowatts. The customer
will be billed for that amount of kilowatts each month for the entire year. If in any month
the customer exceeds the contract demand amount then, the contract demand will be
billed at a rate of $14.46 per kilowatt. The contract demand level will be re-established at
the higher billing amount.

The energy and fuel portion of the Optional Contract Demand will be billed in the same
manner as the Industrial Time of Use rate and is described below:

$.09208 per kilowatt-hour for all kilowatt-hours used between 12:00 Noon and 7:00
P.M., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

$.02763 per kilowatt-hour for all kilowatt-hours used between 7:00 P.M. and 1200 Noon,
Monday through Friday and all hours Saturday, Sunday and holidays as listed in the
General Terms and Conditions.

A customer must contract to be on the Contract Demand rate for a minimum of one year.

The Department may, at its own discretion, move a customer exceeding the contract
demand level to the general Commercial C Rate.

Customer Transformer Ownership:

A customer requiring a minimal transformer capacity of over 2,000 kW will be required
to furnish its own transforming and protective equipment, including mat, vault, primary
and secondary cables, conduits, etc., which must comply with the specifications of the
Department. The following discounts apply when the above is complied with:

$.12 per kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 2,400/4,160 volts.
$.25 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 13,800 volts.

$.375 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 34,500 volts.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 231 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 223

Commercial Schedule C Rate (cont’d)

Metering:
The Department may, at its option, meter at the customer's utilization voltage or on the
high side of the transformers through which the service is furnished.

In the latter case, or if the customer's utilization voltage requires no transformation, a
discount of 1.8% will be applied to the bill exclusive of the fuel charge but in no case will
such a discount be allowed if the metering voltage is less than 2,400 volts.

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges, only if the entire
bill is paid-in-full by the discount due date.

General Terms:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 232 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 224

Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I Rate

Designation:
Industrial Time-of-Use Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:
Service under this rate is available to industrial or commercial customers who take all
their requirements under this rate. All electricity furnished under this rate will be metere |

using an electronic meter capable of metering On-Peak and Off-Peak energy as well as
kW demand.

Notice:

All customers taking electric service under the Industrial Time-of-Use I Rate will be
required to give the Department two (2) years prior written notice of its intention to take
its energy requirements from other supplier and/or resource other than this Department
while remaining on the Department's service territory.

Character of service:
A.C. 60 cycles: single phase or three phase.

Customer Charge:
$30.02 per month.

Demand Charge:
$8.61 per Kilowatt for all demand usage.

Energy Charge:
$.09208 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage during the On-Peak hours.

$.02763 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage during the Off-Peak hours.

Definition of Periods:

The On-Peak period is defined as the hours between 12:00 Noon and 7:00 P.M., Monday
through Friday except holidays as listed below. The Off-Peak period is defined as the
hours between 7:00 P.M. and 12:00 Noon, Monday through Friday and all hours
Saturday, Sunday and granted holidays as listed below.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 232 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 224

Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I Rate (cont’d)

Term:
A customer electing to be billed under this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of

one year. At the end of one year on this rate customer may elect to remain on this rate or
be billed under the C Rate.

Energy Conservation Charge:
The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Measurement of Billing Demand:

The Billing demand shall be the highest of the fifteen minute kilowatt demand established
during the billing period, but not less than eighty percent of the maximum demand
established during the preceding summer or sixty percent of the maximum demand
established during the winter period.

Definitions of Seasons:
The summer Season is defined as the months of June through September and the Winter
Season is defined as the months of October through May.

Farm Discount:

Customers who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by the Massachusetts
Department of Food and Agriculture for being engaged in the business of agriculture or
farming, and upon certification to the RMLD by the Massachusetts Department of Food
and Agriculture, will be eligible for an additional ten percent discount, prior to the RMLD
prompt payment discount, on rates and charges applicable on their monthly billing
statement.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 232 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 224

Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I Rate (cont’d)

Customer Transformer Ownership:

A customer requiring a minimal transformer capacity of over 2000 kW will be required to
furnish its own transforming and protective equipment, including mat, vault, primary and
secondary cables, conduits, etc., which must comply with the specifications of the
Department. The following discounts apply when the above is complied with:

$.12 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 2,400/4,160 volts.
$.25 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 13,800 volts.
$.375 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 34,500 volts.

Metering:

The Department may, at its option, meter at the customer's utilization voltage or on the
high side of the transformer through which the service is furnished. In the latter case, or
if the customer's utilization voltage requires no transformation, a discount of 1.8% will be
applied to the bill exclusive of the fuel charge but in no case will such discount be
allowed if the metering voltage is less than 2,400 voltage

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges, only if the entire
bill is paid-in-full by the discount due date.

Granted Holidays

Under the Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I Rate the holidays granted for Off-Peak are;
New Year’s Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day and Christmas Day.

General Terms and Conditions:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 233 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 216

School Schedule SCH Rate

Designation:
School SCH Rate

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Applicable to public or private schools offering kindergarten, regular elementary, middle,
and high school as approved by the Department, who take all their requirements under
this rate. All electricity furnished under this rate will be metered through one service
unless it is convenient for the Department to do otherwise.

Notice:

All customers taking electric service under the School Rate will be required to give the
Department two (2) years prior written notice of its intention to take its energy
requirements from other supplier and/or resource other than this Department while
remaining on the Department's service territory.

Character of service:
AC 60 cycles: single phase or three phase.

Customer Charge:
$6.01 per month.

Firm Demand Charge:
$6.28 per Kilowatt for all demand usage.

Energy Charge:
$.05265 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage.

Budget Billing:

The customers under the School Rate may elect the Budget Billing program under which
the customer is required to pay levelized amount to the Department each billing period
during the calendar year. This rate is not available to School Rate Customers electing the
Contract Demand Rate, or the Non Firm Demand Rate. The specifics of this program are
outlined in the Department's General Terms and Conditions.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1,2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 233 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 216

School Schedule SCH Rate (cont’d)

Energy Conservation Charge:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Energy
Conservation Charge.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Measurement of Billing Demand:

The billing demand shall be the highest of the fifteen minute Kilowatt demand
established during the billing period, but not less than eighty percent of the maximum
demand established during the preceding summer or sixty percent of the maximum
demand established during the winter season.

Definitions of Seasons:
The summer Season is defined as the months of June through September and the Winter
Season is defined as the months of October through May.

Customer Transformer Ownership:

A customer requiring a minimal transformer capacity of over 2000 kW will be required to
furnish its own transforming and protective equipment, including mat, vault, primary and
secondary cables, conduits, etc., which must comply with the specifications of the
Department. The following discounts apply when the above is complied with:

$.12 per kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 2,400/4,160 volts.

$.25 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 13,800 volts.

$.375 per Kilowatt of demand when the service is taken at 34,500 volts.

Metering:

The Department may, at its option, meter at the customer's utilization voltage or on the
high side of the transformers through which the service is furnished.

In the latter case, or if the customer's utilization voltage requires no transformation, a
discount of 1.8% will be applied to the bill exclusive of the fuel charge but in no case will

such a discount be allowed if the metering voltage is less than 2,400 volts.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 233 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 216

School Schedule SCH Rate (cont’d)

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges, only if the entire
bill is paid-in-full by the discount due date.

General Terms:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 234 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 225

Street Lighting Rate Schedule D

Designation:
Street Light D Rate

Available:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Street Light service on all public, private, and unaccepted streets where the Department
has private facilities for supplying electricity and where the installation work involved
is limited to the necessary lighting unit and connection on the same pole.

Energy Charge:
The rate per year for the standard 4,000-hour schedule is as follows:
Fixture Type Annual Rate Annual kWh
58 Watt Incandescent $55.40 232
92 Watt Incandescent $55.40 368
50 Watt HPS $29.98 244
100 Watt HPS $30.03 508
100 Watt Mercury $41.38 520
100 Watt Mercury UG $41.38 520
175 Watt Mercury $41.73 860
250 Watt HPS $55.22 1,228
400 Watt Mercury $54.18 1,840
400 Watt HPS $54.24 1,828

Note: Incandescent and Mercury lamps will no longer be supplied for new
installations.

Fuel Adjustment:
The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the
Standard fuel Adjustment Clause.

The Fuel Adjustment will appear on the bill as the monthly fuel charge multiplied by
one twelfth of the Annual kWh shown above for each Fixture Type.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 234 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 225

Street Lighting Rate Schedule D (cont’d)

Purchase Power Adjustment:
The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the
Purchase Power Adjustment.

The Purchase power Adjustment will appear on the bill as the monthly charge
multiplied by one twelfth of the Annual kWh shown above for each Fixture Type.

Extra Pole Cost
When an extra pole is required, specifically for street lighting, there will be an extra
cost based upon pole size, including up to 100 feet of secondary.

30 foot or 35 foot Class 4 pole $44.00 per year

40 foot Class 4 pole $48.00 per year

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges, only if the entire
bill is paid-in-full by the discount due date.

General Terms and Conditions:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are
incorporated herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30,2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 235 supersedes
Municipal Light Department and cancels MDPU # 217

Cooperative Resale Schedule G Rate

Designation:
Cooperative G Rate

Available in:

Available to municipal lighting plants and private companies whose service territory is
adjacent to the service territory of the Department and for distribution to such customers
that cannot be served from the existing distribution lines, provided that the Department
has available facilities for furnishing the service

Character of Service:
A.C. 60 cycles: single phase.

Customer Charge:
$3.49 per month.

Energy Charge:
$.08349 per Kilowatt-hour for all Kilowatt-hours usage.

Fuel Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Standard
Fuel Adjustment Clause.

Purchase Power Adjustment:

The bill for service hereunder may be increased or decreased as provided by the Purchase
Power Adjustment.

Meter Reading and Billing:

Bills under this schedule will be rendered monthly. A prompt payment discount of 10%
will be allowed on the current bill, excluding fuel adjustment charges, only if the entire
bill is paid-in-full by the discount due date.

General Terms and Conditions:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate schedule.

Rate Filed: January 30, 2014
Effective: On Billings on or After February 1, 2014
Filed By: Coleen M. O’Brien, General Manager






READING MUNICIPAL LIGHT DEPARTMENT

To: RMLD Board, Citizens” Advisory Board Date: January 16, 2014
From: Coleen O'Brien r PN
Subject: RMLD Rate Increase

RMLD is seeking an approximate 5% increase to the overall bill. This increase equates to 9% of the
customer and base energy charges on the residential bill, and the customer, base energy and demand
charges on the commercial/industrial bill. Attachment 1, as an example, reflects the impact on a
residential customer at a net increase of $3.21 per month for 500 kilowatt hours.

The kilowatt hour sales projections over the last several years assumed unrealistic load growth
assumptions, which were not adjusted in the FY 2014 budget. These assumptions supported increased
base revenues to cover expenses, including the four town payments, and the annual Reading payment in-
lieu-of tax (PILOT) which was approximately $2.3 million. Attachment 2 addresses the reforcasted sales
for fiscal year 2014 which includes four months of actual data.

Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 164, Section 58, does not allow RMLD to have rates that are below
production costs. A net loss adversely impacts RMLD's ability to make its payment commitments and
increases RMLD’s credit risk in qualifying for low cost contracts with power suppliers.

RMLD was in a transition phase during the FY 2014 budget process with an Interim General Manager
performing two critical job functions and the RMLD continuing its search for a General Manager. The
necessity of the rate increase is a result of a recent diligent review of the budget to actual financials. It is
with fiduciary duty that this issue must be addressed proactively to ensure solid financial positioning by
the end of the fiscal year; delays only compound the revenue issue.

RMLD has not had a rate increase or an updated Cost of Service Study in over three and a half years.
RMLD is developing a long term Strategic Plan which focuses on reliability, rates, staffing and process
efficiencies. An RMLD Cost of Service Study model is currently being developed and its resultant study
findings and six year projections will be completed and presented later this spring.

Moving forward, the economy combined with the forecasted energy hikes due to transmission and
capacity over the next couple of years, will keep electric bill topics in the press for both the municipals
and investor-owned utilities alike. RMLD is a not-for-profit municipal and will, with due diligence,
remain with rates amongst the lowest in the state.

Attachment 3 reflects all the rate classes which the rate increase will affect: Residential Schedule A Rate,
Residential Schedule RW Controlled Water Heater Rate, Residential Time-of-Use Schedule A2 Rate,
Commercial Schedule C Rate, Industrial Time-of-Use Schedule I Rate, School Schedule SCH Rate,
Streetlighting Rate Schedule D, and the Cooperative Resale Schedule G Rate.

Attachments are as follows:

Attachment 1 — Residential Breakout

Attachment 2 — Fiscal Year 2014 Reforecast

Attachment 3 — Salient Points e-mail from RMLD General Manager
Attachment 4 — PowerPoint presentation



EXISTING JANUARY 2014 RATES RESIDENTIAL
CUSTOMER CHARGE
BASE RATE CHARGE 500 e $0.08365 per kWh***
ENERGY CONSERVATION CHARGE 500 e $0.00100 per kWh***
FUEL CHARGE PER KWH 500 e $0.04500 per kWh
HAZMAT 500 ) $0.00100 per kWh**
NYPA CREDIT 500 e ($0.00375) per kWh
PURCHASE POWER ADJUSTMENT 500 e $0.001270 per kWh**
[ TOTAL WITHOUT DISCOUNT]

10% PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNT

[ TOTAL NET
**TOTAL BASE for DISCOUNT CALCULATION $46.94
AVERAGE COST PER KWH $0.12574
PROPOSED FEBRUARY 2014 RATES

RESIDENTIAL
CUSTOMER CHARGE
BASE RATE CHARGE 500 e $0.09118 per kWh**
ENERGY CONSERVATION CHARGE 500 e $0.00100 per kWh**
FUEL CHARGE PER KWH 500 e $0.04500 per kWh
HAZMAT 500 e $0.00000 per KWh***
NYPA CREDIT 500 e ($0.00375) per kWh
PURCHASE POWER ADJUSTMENT 500 e $0.001270 per KWh***
™ “TOTAL WITHOUT DISCOUNT]

10% PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNT

[ TOTAL NET
**TOTAL BASE for DISCOUNT CALCULATION $50.51 [ $$ DIFFERENCE

[ %DIFFERENCE |

AVERAGE COST PER KWH $0.13216

$3.47
$41.83
$0.50
$22.50
$0.50
($1.88)
$0.64
$67.56
($4.69)

$62.87

$3.78
$45.59
$0.50
$22.50
$0.00
($1.88)
$0.64
$71.13
($5.05)

$66.08

$3.21

5.11%

Attachment 1



%26’ %bL's %she %z8'9 wZT'S %09'L % 4OY
SYOErLT 0LL¥E0T “owvoes 6682652 Gy 80L1092'c 3WOONI 13N
IO (¥4 Wz veve ¥z 1890207 000EIvE $NOLLONGIA SNOINVTIIOSIN TV10L
L30T Izz'Iev'e 1ZZ'Isv'T IIsv'e realT 000'sk¥°Z (10N ONIGNTONI) SNOLLONGIA ¥IHLO
000's 000°c 000'c 000’ vk 000'c dX3 1S3Y3INI 11§0430 HIANOLSND

SIENIINT ONIIVEIIONON

000SZL'} 000'0¥0°} 000'0v0'} 000°0%0'} 0LL'SOC) 000°020°} ANOINI ¥3HLO TV1O0L
000'sZL 000'052 000052 000°052 oro'sve 000'008 QIV NI 3INVAGY ANV GNNJ3Y SIMNN
000°0S} 000'05 000°05 000'05 SEP'yZ 000°00} INOINI LSIUILNI
000'052 0000V 000'0v2 000002 S£9'vee 000°0Z} ONIGEOr ONY 3SaW

SIANNIASY ONILVYIJONON

66C°0L0Y 1668Y¥'C 1€9v6L} 0Z1'200'y 968'8VT°E 20L'8L9' IWOINI ONLLYNIJO TVLIOL

18'ste'8L zever sl 7eVer'sL 197'058°81 SE9'5Y0'6L [T S3ISNIdX3 ONLLYNILO V101
z89'1LY') 000°'00¥'} 000°00%'1 000°00%'} 006's.¢°) 000'89¢'} SLNIWAVd NMOL
$69°ZC6'S veo'sLL's r9'sLL'S 00Z'sLL'S 0£9's89'c 000°059'C ISNIJX3 NOLLYIDINIIA
e ceLeCh'e tcl'eel's £C9'vZT'E LEZ'89L'T 26¢°20L'T ISNIJXI IONVNILNIVI
199'120°0} 0gs'szL's o08s'szL's 8zZ1'855'6 Wwe'zig's 990°00v°6 ISNIJX3 NOILYNIJO
15v'968'6Z 189'sZ0'6Z 189'5Z0'6Z oLv'esL)e c2e's08'ce 000°005°0¢ q3N4 - ¥3IMOd AISYHIINJ
6r9'98£'0¢C 000°92v'9Z 008°92H'9Z sce'ezheT 6S6°L11'8Z TvLToN0 3sVa - ¥IMOJ AISYHOUNd

$IENIIXT SNILVEIdO

0LC'v16728 s18'cre 8 6S¥'88T 1L 188'158'Z8 1ES' P62 28 vi810v'Z8 INNIAIY ONLLYNILO TVLOL
0 190'16¥ 190'16Y 192'20L Zv1'969 659'v0L INNIAIY NOS MVO
00Z'669 002'669 00Z'669 88Z°20L 1er'see 199'v0L NOILYANISNOD ASYINI
25" 12V} 2Zy'reo’) $18'866 069'CY0’} 8£9'126 vi6'000°) SINNOJSIa a3LITIN0S
(000'002) (o00002) (000°004) (000°002) (ove's02) (000'002) ANSVd
0 000729 00029 ¥88'050') v6L'8EL'} 009'¥CH'Z ININLSNIaY ¥IMOJ QISYHONNd
LSv'965'0¢e 189'szL'6 189'522'62 012'809'2¢ ISLVSEVE 000°00Z°}¢ q3n4 - 93713 40 sTIVS
8L 1SS or'elo’Ly 969'00¥'sY 8oV'OrY'LY 8ST'80T'SY 0Z0°21E'Ly 3sve - 93713 40 $3TVS

ENN L E]
SIAd PLI9-VLIT WOYS 71 Ad vioz €10z €10z
ISYIAONI ALVNISYE  ONIILVN IsvE %8 O/M 139ana qaLany 139ana
%S'€ 1.aaY HLIM %86 HLM 1svoaN043y
153 30IAMN3S 1SVo34043y
40 1809 3ud
cHILTL
71 Ad 1SVIFUOI

ANINLNVCIA LHOIT TVLIJINAA ONIGVIY

Wd 2521
rLoz/esL

Attachment 2



Jeanne Foti
—

From: Coleen O'Brien

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 3:34 PM

To: RMLD Board Members Group; Tom Ollila (taollila@verizon.net);
davidnelson@verizon.net; ghooper@townofwilmingtonma.com; tonycapobiancol
@gmail.com

Cc: Jane Parenteau; Bob Fournier; Kathleen Rybak; Jeanne Foti; Priscilla Gottwald;
jhull@wilmingtonma.gov; gbalukonis@northreadingma.gov; LeLacheur, Bob; william-
gustus@town.lynnfield.ma.us

Subject: SALIENT POINTS ADDRESSING THE RMLD RATE INCREASE

Attachments: RESIDENTIAL IMPACT.pdf

Good afternoon: | just sent a copy of a press release (being sent to the local papers today) to you as well as the
Selectmen and Town Managers. It was noted in the press release that presentations to the Board of Commissioners and
Citizens Advisory Board are scheduled for January. In the interim, | wanted to share the salient points for the rate
increase with you.

The laws that govern utility financing can be quite different from regular business structures, as well as the
terminology. The intent of this email is to consolidate the salient facts.

RATE INCREASE

For a 500 KWHTr residential customer, a 9% increase to the base rate which affects only the customer and base
rate charge portions of the bill, equates to a 5.3% increase to the overall bill or an increase of $3.21. The
attached delineates this break-out for the residential class only.

KWHTr sales projections over the last several years assumed unrealistic load growth assumptions. These
assumptions supported increased base revenues to cover all expenses and commitments. These load growth
assumptions were not monitored and did not come to fruition thereby leaving the projected net income for
FY14 at $380K. Realistically, the KWHr sales have trended flat (-.32%) with residential slightly up and
commercial slightly down, however, commercial represents approximately 10% of all customers but a 65% of
KWHTr sales and pulls in a higher Rate of Return than the residential class.

LEGAL AND OTHER ADVERSE IMPACTS

Mass General Law (MGL) 164, Section 58, does not allow RMLD to have rates which are below production
costs. Ending with a net loss is a violation of MGL 164, S58.

Pursuant to DPU 85-121, RMLD'’s voluntary PILOT payment to the Town of Reading must come from net
income.

If the projected net income of $380K gets depleted by the end of the fiscal year, RMLD would end with a net
loss, which is violation of MGL 164, S58. This could affect the PILOT payment made to the Town of Reading.

CREDIT IMPACT

Rates which are below production costs will impact RMLD’s excellent credit rating and the credit rating of the
Town of Reading.

Rates which are below production costs are deemed a security and credit risk to power suppliers. RMLD’s ability
to purchase power from suppliers will be adversely impacted.

PLANNING AND EXPENSES

Rate Stabilization and Deferred Fuel Funds should be set and used to cover catastrophic events such as the
purchase of replacement energy for an unexpected generator shutdown. One month of replacement energy

1
Attachment 3



could cost up to $1.5M during a peak period. As in the case of Katrina in 2005, RMLD depleted in excess of $3M
fuel reserves within a few months. cash transfer of rate stabilization funds would not affect the net income.

¢ RMLD has reduced its staff approximately 13% over the last 5 years without a strategic or succession plan. RMLD
has a number of key positions currently vacant. The Organizational Study will identify the staffing levels, create
movement in positions, and support skill set development to ensure efficient processes and meet current and
long term strategic objectives.

e The Long Term Reliability Study will identify and prioritize necessary capital improvements to ensure continued
safe and reliable service.

e The Depreciation Fund covers capital construction costs. The capital costs for a given fiscal year should be
delineated in an approved long term reliability plan. The base fund should be set to cover a catastrophic event
such as the loss of a main transformer, substation or other facility.

e A Cost of Service Study splits the pie by dividing costs by rate classes. RMLD’s business model objectives
including setting its Rate of Return, as well as the Operating/ Maintenance and Power Supply budgets, are all
input values into the COS model. The COS will be done in the early spring.

ColeenwwM. ©O’'Brieww

General Manager

Reading Municipal Light Department
230 Ash Street

Reading, MA 01867



¢T10¢ 41=equ=d9(d
J93eue|p |eJaulD

uallg,O uo9|0)

uoissnasiq aduey) a1ey AN Y

Attachment 4



duijed ypaJd
puoq ||eJaA0 S, 3uipeay JO UMO] pue s d7INY ulelulew o] —
SP99U JUSWIISOAU| UO UINIY S,ulpeay 199w 0] —
Alljigel)a walsAs 1Ud||92xe ulejuiew o} —

A}10111033 JaAI|op

pue ‘Jue|d ulejuiew ‘aseydind 03 1502 ay3 SuilaawW Joj (9T
D *71°D) el49}1JI S139SNYdesse|n S199W d1INY 9yl 24nsua of —

-PopoaU Sl aSealddul aled S, JTINY -

M3IAIDAQ



dIY4ON pue YvISN Aq paniss
SJW0ISNI UBeYl JOMO| yaonw 4 ||13S ||IM 1502 A11011103|9 eale

92IAJDS JNO ‘DSeatdul 91ed parsanbal s,dTIAY Yl YUM UdA] —
Adenuer ul aseaJloul

1918348 10 %0€ e uo guluue|d aJte Siaylo pue YyISN
9Sea.Joul 1kl 1Se| 9yl 2JUlS SieaA gy ¢ uaaq sey ]|
sallljedidiunw pue ‘sassauisng

‘sawioy 03 A}I014109]@ SulJaAl|ap JO 1S0D 3y}

199W 1SNW 1A @Y1 ‘Y9T 2 19 SHasnyYdesse|N Japun

uollewJojuj punoadoeg



[EUapPISaY |
[EI2J2WWO) |
Buip|ing IUNAl
Sunysnisanse

3jesay Joj 3eS m

€10¢

[41¢]4

e
T110¢C 0T0¢ 600¢ 800¢

£00¢

900¢

€T0¢C - 900¢
sse|) Jowo3isn) Aq sajes ym

aTiNe

000°000°00T

000000002

000'000°00€

000000007 sajes ymy

000°000°00S

000000009

00000000

000000°008




Jomod Jamoj Ajpuediylusis
3sn YdIiym ‘siolo|N aalug Aduanbau4 ajgeisnipy se yons
‘S9IIN9P JU3IDIYD ASI9UD 0] panoW dABY SJ9SN |elISNPU| —

3u11ys1| Jusdsapuedul Jo uoiloely
e sash yaiym ‘sunnysi| g3i Jo/pue 14) 01 Ajpides Suinow
9Je SJI9WO01SNI |BlIISNPU| pPUB [BIDJWWO)) ‘|eIIuUSpISOY —

:A3ojouyoa] ul aduey)

S||1q 419Y1 92npaJ S3SSe[I JaW01sSnd S || 1sisse
01 9AI30e0.d SI Q7IAY {S1404D UOIIBAISSUOD 214103]3

sa|es YA\ S@auanjjul Ajjeads Jayleapn
0T0Z Y3nouayl 8007 :Awouoda yeapn
:suoseay a|dnjnn
éunjuliys/iely agesn ymy st Aym



'A11214109]9 JaAI|9p pue jue|d ulejuiew ‘@seydind o0}
1SOD S} JBA0D 1SnW sa3ed ‘49T 2 1O SSeA 031 SulpJ0IdY

‘8uipeay JO umo] pue gAY 404 suolledljdwi

11paJd 3sJ9Ape dAeY p|n0od aseaudul ul sAeja
'9Sea.4oul U33Je| e Ul 3 nsal ||IMm

pa1a|dwod 3 01 ApNnis 921AI3S JO 1SOD) 40} Sulliepn
"€T0C ‘AInf

0} Jouid asealdul a1ed e passalppe aAey pjnoys diling

¢ MON Sa1ey aseasou] Aypn



'Spaau aJniny 1o} pateas
puUE U313 dJe S32JN0S3J ||B 1Y) 34nsud 0} Apnis
|euoileziue8iQ ue jo ssad04d ayj ui osje st INY e

"PeM3INa] UDd3( aARY sasuadxa NRO o

‘¢ T Aj91ewixoidde Agq paseatdap sey
sieaA oAl 1sed ayy Jano sasAojdwa QINY JO JaquinN .

S9suadx3



"'9SeaJoul 91ed punodwod

P|NOM Spunj} uoljezijigels ajed Jo Juawade|day .
"QW0odUl 19U adueyd

JOU ||IM uollezl|igels 21ed woJ} Jajsuedy ysed .
"931ed Jaysdly yonuw e 1e 19yJew jods ayj

woJ} Ang 03 padio} aq pjnom Q1INY ‘@3eino ue
Sey 92JNn0S 1500 MO| e woJj papinoid Jomod §| .

uoiezijiqes aley



0%

"9JIAJDS JOWOISND

pue Ajljigel|aJ ulejuien
‘'suolledl|qo

|eloueul) pue |e83| 199N
‘%6 A|91ewixoidde

JO 9seaJdul ||eJanQ

9Sealdul 9}kl HcmEm_QE_

"9JI1AJ9S JOWO0ISND

pue Ajljiqel|aJ syoedw|
‘suoliedljdwi

|eIDUBUL) pue |BS| 9SIDAPY
J91e|

9SeaJoul J93Je| e ul S}|nNsay

o9SeaJiul olel >m_mD

10edw|

suonldQ ajqissod

suondo




1T

solpnis Alljiqel|ay pue |euolleziuediQ SulWiondd —

ApniS 921AJ3S JO 150D 3unajdwo) —

Spa9u 24NN} }199W 03 SpuaJl ay] SuizAjeuy —
:ul 9A130e04d SUIaq SI QTINY

CRILVER

Jawolsnd pue AlljigeljaJ waisAs Jua||adxa Sil ulejuiew

0] Se ||[9M Se suoIjesi|qo |esa| pue |eloueul] sl 19w
01 Q1INY MO||e 03} MOou padinbal SI asealoul ajel y .

uoisnjduo)






ELECTRIC POWER ENGINEERING
35 MAIN STREET HOPKINTON, MA 01748 TELEPHONE (508) 435-9377

To: Coleen O’Brien, General Manager

Ce: Jane Parenteau, Bob Fournier, Bill Selden
From: Mayhew D. Seavey, Ir.

Date: January 17, 2014

Subject: Draft Proforma FY2014 Test Year Cost of Service

I'have completed the 2014 Proforma Test Year Cost of Service analysis using the data that
RMLD has provided. This memorandum summarizes the results of that analysis. The results
confirm that, absent an immediate increase in rates, RMLD will have net income for the year, after
deducting the Return on Investment payment to the Town of Reading, of less than $400 thousand.

Starting with the FY2013 Historic Test Year Cost of Service Model that was shown to
board members at the training session on December 4, I updated the data as follows:

® Operating expenses, including purchased power, were taken from the “2014 Budget
Summary” dated 5/14/2013;

® Kilowatt-hour sales for each customer class were taken from your spreadsheet
“FY2014_Jul thru Dec Actual_Jan thru Jun Same as FY 2013 (no growth)”.
This represents total sales just slightly lower (0.2%) than the actual FY13 sales
already in the model;

® T used the Cost of Service model to generate revenues from the existing and

proposed rates, rather than using the revenues in your budget. This is the only
difference between my results and yours;

The results show that, by our calculation and based on these assumptions, RMLD would
have Net Income of $297 thousand in FY2014. A calculation consistent with the regulations of the
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities yields a rate of return of approximately 3% which is
far short of the 8% allowed under statute.

It appears to me that this outcome has resulted from flat or declining sales over the last few
years, which will tend to erode earnings if purchased power costs are being passed through directly.
It also appears that the decline in earnings was masked somewhat in FY2013 by an over-recovery
of purchased power expense that increased revenues above the level that would have been received
if all purchased power expenses had been passed through.

Because my Cost of Service model does not include monthly detail, it is not possible for me
to calculate the rate increase that would be required to earn the target level of net income. Since
my model agrees with RMLD’s own projections for the entire fiscal year, I can be confident that
RMLD’s projections of the increase needed for the remainder of the fiscal year are in line with
what I would project.

The next step of my analysis will be to look at FY2015 to determine the level of rates
needed to meet budgeted expenses and produce the desired net income. This task can be completed
as soon as final 2015 budget information is received.

If there are any questions regarding this, please do not hesitate to contact me.






(yTOZ Adenuef uo paseg)

S9111|11N [B207 J3Y310

"SA

saley q1INY pasodoud

NOSI4VdNOD J1Vd
INIINLIHVYHIA LHOIT TVAIDINNIAN ONIAV3d



%0S" 18 %be'6l %0LE" %66°LL %88'le “%88°LL %YE'9 3ON3H34410 %
L5221°0% L68E1°0$ 60551°0$ Leeyl'0$ 869€1°0$ 88VEL0$ 806€1°0$ IDHVHO HM H3d
Lo 1ZY'ELS 80°'v98'v$ 6v°291% 1Z'6E0'LS 86'9€L$ zeeoes LE'v0LS I8 viol
"Ld30 LHON IVdIJINNW Q13133)NVM
%89°02 %9L°91 %91°E" %Yy6'8 %2084 %6S'S | % b L'} ErELEEE hY
[ZAT4N0: 809£1°0$ 96551°0$ yyIEL0$ ¥92€1°0$ 92eer 0% €0EE10$ IDHVYHO HMX H3d
SL'oee'el$ €6°'29.'V$ vy'891$ 15°656$ v9'ZeLs 6£'861$ LL'66$ T8 viol
‘1d30 LHOIN IVdIJINNIW NO13100IW
%S9°L- %Sc 9tk Yby'EL- %06'8 %66°L %8E"Y %99°9- 3ON3Y3SH0 %
12660°0$ 6vSEL0$ 1Y6EL0$ 6E1EL0$ 9e1210$ EY611°0$ 8022l 0% IDHVHO HMM H3d
8£°'£98'0L$ €LZYL'vS 95°051$ 81°656$ 9’ IZLS SL'6LLS 95°L6$ 8 vioL
ANVd LHOI TVdIJINNW AQ08V3d
%EG18 %cE 99 %0¢'L %26 0F %LS29 %168V %EE LY 3ON3Y34410 %
21e81°0% ¥8E61°0$ G92L1°0$ €00L1°0% 12281°0% SY0LL 0% G8v81°0$ IDHVHI HMX H3d
¥8°150'02$ SE'v8.'9$ Ly'98LS £ ILYT'LS [Wir4: {8 89°'652$ Y9'8ELS Tigviol
ANVdWOD HVLSN
%ESG'SE %0S°62 %06°0 %08°8¢E %83Y°SS %Se vy %6S'EE 30N3H34410 %
ZL9EV0$ £6051°0$ 05291°0$ 8v/91°0$ eLvLV oS 90594°0% ELVLL'0$ IDHYHO HMX H3d
85°0L6'Y1$ cL'zee'ss$ 05°SLLS 1528218 eTLYLLS 65°Ly2$ SO'LELS 778 1oL
QIHO TVNOILVN
88001°0$ SS911°0$ S0191°0$ 99021°0$ 6€211°0$ crvios 6L0€1°0$ 3DHVHO HM) H3d
TLovo’LLS 61'6.0'v$ €6'CLLS 6.'088% 6E°TLLS y9'LLLS 60'86% I8 VLol
“1d30 LHOM IVdIDINNWN DNIQVIH

wds oz/o8 puBwag M) S'0EL puBWag MY 000°0L PUBWISQ MY 000'ST wds sz/5L

PUBWISQ MY 000°052 S.UM 000SE S.4MH 080°L SUMY 00E"L S.UM 0004 SUMY 0051 SUMY 062
S.UMH 005601 31VH T00HIS IVIOHINWOD TIVINS IVIOHIWWOD "3LVM LOH'S3H  NOL-IVIIN3QIS3H IVILN3QIS3H

NOL - IVIHLSNANI

-

pL-Aenuep |

SNMOL ONIONNOHHNS 7 (ASYIHONI 31VH 03S0d0OHd HLIM) ONIQVIH NOSIHYdWOD 31vH
1N3IWLHYdIA LHO IVdIDINNN ONIQV3H 40 NMOL



puO |euoneN

HVISN

PIayaxem

uo33|PPIN

Apoqead

ANy

[(sumi 0SZ)
[lenuapisay |

9seadU| %

S YHM

{SYmx-080°T) -
wwo) jjews

o9Seald

UI-%S YUM-

[e12J3WWo) [jews pue |eljuapisay

09$

08$

00T$

(174 8

ovTS

09T$

08TS

00¢$



PO jeuoneN YVISN JEIENEIN uoI3|PPIN Apoqead aTny

0s

002$

00vS

009$

008%

ssesur§ 000°TS
%S YHM

002‘t$

(1]1) 28

|e1Jawwo)



pUD [euoneN

dVISN

plRLEM uo33|ppPIN Apoqead ainy

{(sum>-00ST)

Nnol

| tennuapisay|

aseaJdu] %S YHUM

NOL [eluapIsay

09$

(1) 4 A

09T$

1) 4

092$

OTES



puo |euoneN UVISN pIRYEM uoI3|PPIN Apogead aTny

0$
000'SS
Aﬂwl_dgqq N wJ ‘. QOQ.O.HW
(M1 05¢)-(sumdt-00S°6OT)
AOL [emsnpu| aseasduj
| %S YUM .
000'STS
000°02S
000°S2$

NOL [erasnpu



puo jeuoneN YVISN playaYEM uo3a|PPIN Apogead ainy

0s$

000°T$

0002$

000°€$S

000vS

aseaJouj
%S UM -

000°s$

(unr 000'se]
~[91eY |OOYIS I

0009S

000°L$

000°8$

Jooyds






PRIVILEGED/CONFIDENTIAL/ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT

RUBINanD
RUDMANLr

Attorneys at Law

T:617.330.7000 F:617.330.7550
50 Rowes Wharf, Boston, MA 02110

MEMORANDUM
BY EMAIL

To: Coleen O'Brien, General Manager
Reading Municipal Light Department

From: Christopher Pollart and Karla Doukas
Re: Proposed Rate Increase and Issues Related to the 20-Year Agreement
Date: January 16, 2014

On behalf of the Reading Municipal Light Department (“RMLD”), you have asked us to
address issues raised by the Lynnfield Board of Selectmen in its January 15, 2014 letter
regarding RMLD’s proposed rate increase for electric service.

At the outset, we note that it is our understanding from discussions with you that the rate
increase being considered by RMLD is 5%, or $3.21 per month on a residential customer’s bill
who uses 500 kWh per month and not 9% as referenced in the Lynnfield Board of Selectmen’s
letter. It is also our understanding from discussions with you that RMLD has paid $2,301,221 to
the Town of Reading in fiscal year 2014 for calendar year 2013 as a voluntary payment to the
Town of Reading sourced from RMLD’s below-the-line earnings or profit.

As you are aware, the Agreement between RMLD and the Towns of Wilmington,
Lynnfield and North Reading requires, among other things, that RMLD make in-lieu of tax
payments to the Towns for a 20-year term (“20-Year Agreement”). The 20-Year Agreement
contemplates two types of payments: (1) payments-in-lieu of taxes made pursuant to special
legislation, and (2) voluntary payments made from RMLD’s below-the-line earnings as part of
its discretionary authority if and to the extent special legislation is not in effect. Section 5 of the
20-Year Agreement specifically requires that RMLD’s payments in lieu-of-taxes pursuant to
special legislation be treated as expenses for ratemaking purposes. RMLD obtained special
legislation, thus authorizing RMLD to include as annual operating expenses and recover through
its rates, the in-lieu of tax payments made to the Towns of Reading, Wilmington, North Reading
and Lynnfield. See St. 1990, c. 405, § 1.

G.L. c.164, § 58 governs the rate practices of municipal light plants such as RMLD.

Under this statutory scheme, RMLD has broad discretion to expend money and set rates. See
Bertone v. Department of Pub. Utils., 411 Mass. 536, 543 (1992); Municipal Light Comm’n of

1457557_1



Peabody v. Peabody, 348 Mass. 266, 270-72 (1964). In fact, G.L. c. 164 grants the Department
of Public Utilities (“DPU”) only limited power to review the rate practices of municipal light
plants. Seem e.g., Bertone, 411 Mass. at 548; Holyoke Water Power Co. v. Holyoke, 349 Mass.
442, 445-46 (1965); Stow Municipal Elec. Department, D.T.E. 94-176-C, at 20-21 (2001)
(stating that the DPU has limited ratemaking authority over municipal light plants); Reading
Municipal Light Department (“Reading”), D.P.U. 85-121/85-138/86-28-F (1987) (examining
RMLD’s cost data and rate structure). The Court has recognized that municipal light plants do
not nearly require the same degree of scrutiny and supervision as investor-owned utilities.
Bertone, 411 Mass. at 547-48. Thus, the DPU generally defers to the ratemaking authority and
policies of the municipal light plant. Id. at 543.

G.L. c.164, § 58 authorizes municipal light plants to set rates to earn an 8% return on the
cost of plant and allows rate increases as often as every three months. Notably, Section 5(c) of
the 20-Year Agreement expressly recognizes that nothing in the 20-Year Agreement precludes

RMLD “from earning a return of eight percent per annum on the cost of plant in accordance with
G.L.c. 164, §58..”

In addition, Section 5(c) of the 20-Year Agreement explicitly recognizes RMLD’s right
and authority to make additional voluntary payments to the Town of Reading from its
unappropriated surplus, i.e., below-the-line earnings. Below-the-line earnings are generated
from the allowed return on cost of plant and any extra-period income, i.e., surplus. See, e.g.,
Littleton Electric Light Department (Advisory Opinion), D.P.U. 96-11 (1996); Reading, supra;
In re Paras, D.P.U. 86-16, at 1-2 (1986). RMLD has considerable authority over the
management and use of its surplus funds and may determine the most effective use of the funds.
Revenues generated from the return on plant or extra period income may be used for below-the-
line items, such as discretionary payments. The DPU has recognized that municipal light plants
may use unappropriated earned surplus revenues derived from the return on cost of plant or any
“profit” to make voluntary payments to the host Town. See Reading, supra, at 15-16; Peabody
Municipal Light Plant, D.P.U. 89-189, at 7; In re Paras, supra, at 2.

The DPU also has sanctioned the practice of budgeting monthly payments to the host
Town based on its estimated rate of return as a reasonable exercise of the light plant’s
management discretion. See Peabody Municipal Light Plant, supra, at 8. In Peabody Municipal
Light Plant, the Petitioners questioned the light plant’s practice of including a profit estimate in
its budget to be transferred to the City of Peabody. Id. at 8. The DPU concluded that the light
plant could include up to eight percent of the cost of the plant in its net profit estimate in a
properly prepared budget. See id. The DPU reasoned that in the light plant’s budget, the rate of
return estimate appears to be eight percent and the fact that the payments are made on a monthly
basis, after a profit is determined, is inconsequential if the cash management procedures
followed by both City and the light plant make it more convenient to do so. Id.

Accordingly, there is no legal basis to challenge RMLD’s proposed rate increase to
increase its rate of return in accordance with G.L. c. 164, § 58 or the making of any additional
payments to the Town of Reading from RMLD’s rate of return.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions.

1457557_1



PHILIP B. CRAWFORD

Town of i e o

THOMAS D, TERRANOVA, JR.
LYN N F I E LD WILLIAM J. GUSTUS
Town Administrator

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

January 15, 2014

Ms. Coleen O’Brien

General Manager

Reading Municipal Light Department
230 Ash Street

Reading MA 01867

RE: Rate Increase
Dear Ms. O’Brien:

Thank you for having your staff attend the January 6, 2014 meeting of the Lynnfield
Board of Selectmen to discuss the proposed increase in rates to be charged for electric
service in Lynnfield. The presentation was enlightening, pardon the pun, but concerning
as well. On behalf of the Board of Selectmen, I want to express our collective concern in
such a large rate increase at this time.

In looking at the documents previously provided, and in listening to the presentation last
Monday, it is apparent that there has been a change in policy resulting in the decision to
raise rates so dramatically at this time. While we understand that RMLD is allowed to
earn up to 8% of net plant each year per state regulation, we are mindful that it is not
required that it do so. We are also concerned that that the additional PILOT payment
made to the Town of Reading is shown as a current year expense rather than as a
payment out of last year’s unappropriated earned surplus. The whole purpose of the
Special Legislation that was passed as a result of the four town agreement was to allow
the payments to the four towns to be made out of current year revenue. The four town
agreement specifically states that additional payments to Reading, over and above the
four town payments, must come from unaapropriated earned surpluses. This can only
mean that these payments come from the prior year’s surplus and are not current year
obligations.

The rate increase has been justified by your staff as being required in order to insure that
RMLD would have sufficient revenue to cover the cost of restoration of services in the
event of a major failure occasioned by weather or other disaster in the current fiscal year.
Without the charge for the additional PILOT payment against current year revenue, it

TOWN HALL 781-334-9410  781-334-9412  FAX: 781-334-9419
55 SUMMER ST., LYNNFIELD, MA 01940-1823 e-mail: william-gustus@town.lynnfield.ma.us



would seem that RMLD should have similar surpluses to those enjoyed in prior fiscal
periods. While we understand that this could impact RMLD’s ability to make next year’s
additional PILOT payment to the Town of Reading, we do not think that necessitates a
9% increase at this time.

The additional PILOT payments to Reading are clearly required to come out of earned
surpluses as agreed by all four towns in the four town agreement. Reading, as a signatory
to this agreement, must have understood that if a surplus did not exist, the payment would
not be made. We have not been told of the existence of a formal PILOT agreement
requiring these payments and we do not know how they have been calculated in the past.
Nevertheless, we believe that the burden of increasing revenue this year to cover not only
current year costs but also to generate sufficient surpluses to make additional PILOT
payments to Reading next year should be borne not only by the rate payers but also the
Town of Reading in the form of a reduced additional PILOT payment next year, if
necessary.

In this way, RMLD could raise rates gradually over the course of the next few years in
order to implement current policy to improve the revenue performance of RMLD. We
think this is a far more equitable way to address this situation and one that will continue
to foster the long standing reputation of RMLD as a cost effective energy provider to its
customers.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Very truly yours,

William J! Gustus
Town Administrator
ce. John Stempeck
CAB
Board of Selectmen
Jeffrey Hull
Gregory Balukonis






Revision No.1_

DRAFT REVISED

CAB POLICY NO. 1 Effective Date

BMLD
CITIZENS’ ADVISORY BOARD

Per Board Vote
Chairman/Date

PURPOSE

A To establish the role of the RMLD Citizens' Advisory Board (CAB) relative to the
Ratepayers customers, the RMLD Commission, and the General Manager.

B. To establish administrative controls for certain CAB activities.

C. The BMLD will provide a minimum annual budget of $15,000 annually to pay for

incurred CAB expenses. The CAB agrees to prepare and submit a budget

request for any additional costs above the $15.000 by November 30", of each

year the RMLD General Manager for review and approval.

GOVERNING LAWS

A M.G.L., Chapter 164 and other applicable federal and state statutes and
regulations.
B. 1990 "20 Year” Agreement between the RMLD and the towns of Lynnfield,

Reading, North Reading, and Wilmington.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The CAB shall elect a chair, vice-chair and secretary.

A. CAB Chairman:

1.

Chairman is responsible for calling regular, emergency, and executive
session meetings of the CAB Board as needed.

Chairman presides over the CAB meetings, sets the agenda and
recognizes all speakers, including other M members.

Chairman nominates Board members to represent the CAB at
appropriate functions, events and meetings. Final decision is by a
majority vote of the Board members.

Chairman nominates Board members to Board Subcomittees. Final
appointment is by a majority vote of the Board members. Fhe-Secretary

j Subcommittees to-which-he/she-is
shall organize and select a chair and other officers as required once
appointed.




5, The Chairman may delegate some, none or all of the above

responsnbllmes to the V|ce Cha|r Seeretafy Iheugh—theﬂnal—autheﬁmdap

CAB Policy No. 1

Page 2

B. CAB Vice-Chair:

1. The CAB vice-chair shall act as chair in the absence of the chair.

B-C. CAB Secretary:

1. Final review of Board minutes.

el N

Certifies, as required by law, votes of the CAB.
Signs, upon direction of a majority vote of the Board members, documents

and legal settlements on behalf of the CAB. Alternatively any Member may be
authorized to perform this function.

[~

In_the absence of the secretary, any other member may be assigned by the

Chair, the duties of secretary for that specific meeting.

G.D. CAB, as a whole, by majority vote:

1. Provide decision-making inputs to the RMLD Board on issues
concerning:
a. Significant expansion or retirement of RMLD’s transmission,

distribution, general plant or generation. "Significant” is defined
as any item that is normally submitted for approval to the RMLD
Commission under the annual capital budget.

Long-term power contracts and agreements and their mix.
"Long-term” is defined as any energy and/or capacity contracts
that exceed all the following conditions:

i 10 megawatts in energy
ii. 6 months in duration
iii. 1 year in length

Cost-of-service and rate making practices.

Significant financial and accounting practices. The following
actions are considered “significant”.

i Creation of reserve accounts or any alteration to existing
reserve accounts. Alterations are defined as a transfer
to or from a reserve account that is not a posting of
accrued interest.



CAB Policy No. 1

e. Review the RMLD operating and capital budgets and
recommend increases, decreases and alterations. The CAB
shall review the proposed budgets for both their ability to ensure
the proper maintenance and needed improvements to the
physical plant of the RMLD, and for its fiscal responsibility and
impact on rates.

f. Other issues as outlined in the most current “20 Year"
Agreement, and as may be referred by the RMLD Commission.

Approves, in advance, attendance by CAB members at any meeting,
conference, training session or similar function that requires RMLD
expense compensation or use of RMLD Resources.

Page 3

B. CAB Subcommittees

1.

Serve as a mechanism for the Board to review and consider specific
issues. Subcommittees can recommend but not approve unless
specifically delegated, a course of action to the Board.

V. POLICY ELEMENTS

A. It is the policy of the CAB:

1.

To operate in accordance with the spirit—as-well-asthe most current “20
Year" Agreement, and the—letter—of all applicable laws affecting its
business-and the business of the RMLD.

All Members are required to act with the highest level of integrity,
business ethics and objectivity in any CAB transaction or where a
Member represents the Board or the RMLD. No Member is allowed to
misuse the authority or influence of their CAB position.

To operate in a respectful, businesslike and efficient manner in all
aspects of the CAB meetings.

To hold regular open and public meetings to allow any and all customers
to provide direct input on any open session matter before the Board.

To affirmatively and courteously respond to all requests for public
information, subject to the constraints of Policy 12 (attached), Board
Document Dissemination and Massachusetts Public Records Law. All
requests will be arranged through the General Manager.



